DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Members
Mashobra Resort Limited

The Board presents its Nineteenth Annual Report together with the Audited Statement
of Accounts and the Auditor’s Report in respect of the year ended 3% March, 2015,

Financia) Highlights

The financial highlights of the year under review as compared to the previous year are
given below: :

ot e i T e — T ——

. Rupees (in million) !
e[ 2014-2015 20132014

Total Revenug ~ T , 38044 32177
e e Tntere e o L .
- Operating Profit before [nterest, Depreciation, Taxes, 180.05 l{ 122.76
| Amortisations and Exceptional Items (EBIDTA) J |
L e e
~ Interest 1.16 1,47_1
Depreciation T 375977 T 254
Profit/ (Loss)before Tax T T — W‘T o "1'2?[3_07' 989"
| { |
;___h_.‘__“_*%____q_._,\_-_ﬁ_,_.\._ﬂ#.A._.___, S ——— !
| Tax including Deferred T ) 39.55 j 47,10
—— N | )
} Profiv/ (Loss) after Tax T 01 7s 5182
Dividend on Equity Sfares~ ~ — " —— T 10 ]
Lo Tbution Tax T e _ L |
;—Dividend Distribution Tax ; - 3.92,
b o Forward Bom oaio oo = v b
. Profit/(Loss) Brought Forward from earljer year - (617.63) (642.43) ;f
e e
' Profit/(Loss) Carried Over (532.57) (617.63)
. "“%ﬁ—"‘_—‘—_‘."—‘“ "‘_“‘“—__'—“—,’*;— T - 1
' Carrying amount of fixed assets where remaining useful \ (16.69) 3
Lifeason 01.04.2015 isNil ———ee L



&

Performance

During the Financial year under review, the Company’s Tota) Revenue was Rs.
380.44 million as compared to R, 321.72 million in the previous year This represents
an increasc of |g % when compared (o the Previous vear. The Profit tor the vear
before Interest, Dcprccz’alion, Taxes and Amortisations (EBIDTA) was Rs. 180.05
miilion as compared to Rs.122.7¢ million in the previous YEar, an increase of 47 %.
The Profit after tax was Rs, 101,75 million as compared to Rs, 5].82 miliion, an
increase of 96%,

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134 (3) of the Cempanies Act, 2013
(“the Act”), and based On representations from the Ma.nagement, the Board stares that:

a) in preparing the Annya) Accounts, it has followed applicable Accounting
Standards ang that there are no material departures:

b) the Directors have Selected such accounting policies apg applied them
consistently and made judgemens and estimates thar are reasonanle apd
prudent, so as tg give a true and fajr view of the stare of affairs of the Company
as at the end of the financial year apd of the profit of the Company for thay

¢) the Directors, 1o the best of their &nowledge ang ability, have taken Proper and
sufficient care In maintaining adequate accounting records i accordance with
the provisions of this Act and for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities:

d) the Directors have prepared the Arnual Accounrs of the Company on a “going
concern” basis; and

€} the Directors have deviseq PIOPEr system 1o ensyre compliance with the
Provisions of gl applicable Jaws ang that such Systems were adequate and

JV Dispute

Disputes  berweep the Joint Vennye Partners, viz, g1 Limited ang Government of
Himachal Pradesh relating to Wiidflower Hall i which the Company s also a partv
are pending in the High Cour of Himacha| Pradesh,

All rooms of Wildflower Ha]j Ar¢ operational and the orders of the Migh Court of
Himachal Pradesh dateq 17" December, 2003, are oeing complied with,



Directors

Mr. Parthasarathi Mitra had replaced Mr. Sudripta Roy as a Govermnment of H.p
nominee on the Board in the casual vacancy caused due to retirement of Mr. Sudripta
Roy from the services of Government of Himachal Pradesh. Mr. Parthasarathi Mitra
will hold office till Mr. Sudripta Roy would have normally held office. The Roard
wishes to place on record its deep appreciation of the valuable contributions made by
Mr. Sudripta Roy during his tenure as a Chairperson/ Director on the Board.

Mr. V.C. Pharka was appointed by the Board on 27" February, 2013 in the casual
vacancy caused due to vacation of office by Mr. Deepak Sanan. Mr. V.C, Pharka will
hold office till Mr. Deepak Sanan would have held office had he not vacated j.e tipto
the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Relevant Notice under Section
160 of the Comnpanies Act, 2013 along with payment of a sum of Rs, 1,00,000 has
been received from a shareholder proposing the appointment of Mr. V.C. Pharka as a
regular Director on the Beard, liable 1o retire by rotation.

Mr. Vikram Oberoj was appointed by the Board on |6 May, 2014 in the casua)
vacancy caused due to the vacating of office by Mr. PR S Oberoi. Mr. Vikram
Oberot will hold office till M. P.R.S. Oberoi would have heid office had he not
vacated i.e upto the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Relevant Notice
under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 along with payment of a sum of Rs,
1,00,000 has been received from a sharcho!der proposing the appointment of My
Vikram Oberoj as a regular Director on the Board, liable to retire by rotation.

M, S.N, Sridhar was appointed by the Board on 16™ May, 2014 in the casual vacancy
caused due to the vacating of office by Mr. §.S. Mukherji. Mr. S.N. Sridhar will hold
office till Mr. §.8. Mukherji would have held office had he not vacated j e upto the
date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Relevant Notice under Scction 160
of the Companies Act, 2013 along with payment of a sum of Rs. 1,00,000 has been
received from a shareholder proposing the appointment of M. S.N. Sridhar as a
regular Director on the Board, liable 1o retire by rotation.

In accordance with Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4 of the
Companies (Appointment & Qualification) Rules, 2014, Mr. Shashank Bhagat and
Mr. Viresh S. Mathur were appointed as “Independent Directors” on the Board for &
consecutive period of § years, not liable to retire by rotation The Board of Directors



was of the unanimous opinion that both Mr. Shashank Bhagat and Mr. Viresh s,
Mathur are mect the criteria of “Independence” preseribed under sub- section (6) of
Section 149 of the Act. Mr, Shashank Bhagat und Mr. Viresp S Mathur have ajso
given a declaration of independence that they meet the requirement of “Independence”
pursuant Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Dr. Shrikant Baldj and Mr. TK. Sibal retire by rotation at the forthcoming Anpual
General Meceting and are eligible for re-appointment,

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Samit Guha who was appointed as the Chijef Financial Officer ("CFQ’) of the
Company at the Board meeting held on 16" May, 2014 haq resigned. In his place
Mr. Biswajit Mitra has been appointed as the CFO of the Company with effect from
29" November, 2014, at the Board Meeting held on 28% November, 2014.

Mr. S.N. Sridhar has been appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company, at the
Board Meeting held on 16" May, 2014,

Corporate Social Responsibility

In accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company has formulated a
CSR policy which can be accessed at the website of the holding company viz:
www.eihltd.com . The details of the policy and the Annua] Report on CSR on or after
I* April, 2014 is given in the enclosed Annexure which forms part of this Report.

The Board of Directors confirms that the Company had committed the fi]] CSR
amount of Rs 14,53,000 and work on CSR activities commenced inthe month

of March, 2015.

The Company coyld only spend Rs.1 1,34,000 as at end of financial year 2014-15 as
the work assigned coyld not be completed before 31"March, 2015 The completion
of work will extend into the financijal year 2015-16 when the balance amount of Rs

3,29,000 will be spent.

participation of the Company and it employees, therc was insufficient time to spend
the entire amount in the financija] year 2014-15. However, the Company will spend the
unspent amount of the financial year 2014-15 in the financial year 20)5s.) 6, in
addition to what it requires to spend in thas financial year."



Audit Committee

The Board of Directors have reconstituted the Audit Committee in accordance with
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 te majorily comprising of Independent
Directors. The Audit Committee now compriscs of Mr. Shashank Bhagat, Independent
Director and Chairperson of the Audit Committee, Mr. Viresh S Mathur, Indcpendent
Director as Member and Mr. Arjun Oberol, Managing Director as Member,

Company’s Policy on Directors’ Appointment and Remuneration and Board
Evaluation Process

The Company has formulated a Policy on Directory’ Appointment and Rernuncration
i accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, a copy of which is
annexed. The policy can be accessed at the website of the Company’s holding
Company viz: www.cihltd.com. As on date, the Company does not have any senior
management personnel as defined in Section 178. The Company has also put in place
the Board Evaluation Process and Policy for the evaluation of Board of Directors,

Independent Directors, Board committecs ete.

Risk Management

The Company is a subsidiary of EIH Limited, the holding Company. At the group
level, a comprehensive Risk Management policy, procedure and risk committee is in
place which is being followed by the Company’s hotel, Wildflower Hall and the
Company as a whole. The risk, if any on the Company and the Company’s hotel is
monitored periodically.

Energy Conservation Measures

Energy conscrvation measures taken during current year include replacement of
incandescent lamps with LED lamps, replacement of a boiler with an energy efficient
boiler, sewage treatment plant renovation and improved insulation of pipe lines.

Some of the actions planned for next year are replacement of Halogen lamps with
LED lamps, replacement of pumps with encrgy efficient pumps, an energy audit and
thermegraphy for the hotel.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and outge

Foreign Exchange eamings during the year amounted to Rs. 62.88 million as
compared 1o Rs.48.28 milljon in the previous year. The outflow of Foreign exchange
during the year was Rs. 3.57 million as compared to Rs. 1.46 million in the previous

year.



Auditors

The Auditors, Ray & Ray, Chartered Accountants, retire at the conclusion of the
Twentieth Annua] General Meeting and offer themselves for re-appointment. They
have confirmed that if appointed, their appointment will be within the [imjrg
prescribed under Section 139 of the Act. Directors recommend their appointment as
auditors of the Company for the financial year 2015-16.

Auditor’s Report

The Auditor’s Observations in their report have beeq fully explained in Note numbers
25(a) (i), 25 (a)(ii) and 25(e) of the Statement of Accounts and do not cal] for any

further comments,
Significant and Materjal Orders, if any

During the year, there are o sigmificant and materia) orders passed by the regulators
Or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operation

in future.

Contracts or Arrangements

The Contract or arrangements with Related Parties are in the ordinary course of
business and are at arm’s length. There are no material Contracts or arrangements
cntered into by the Company with jtg Related Parties, required to be reported in the
prescribed form in terms of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule

8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
Extract of Annual Return

Extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 Annexed.
Loans, Guarantees or investments

During the year, the Company has not given any loan or Guarantee and has not made
any investments.

Deposits

During the year, the Company has not accepted any deposits.

Secretarial Audit, Internai Audit, Vigil Mechanism

The Company does not qualify for the requiremen: for appointment of a Secretarial

Auditor and Interna] Auditor under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 The Company does not qualify for the requirement of establishment of g Vigil



Mechanism in terms of Section 177 of the Act read with Rule 7 (1) of the Companies
(Meetings of the Board) Rules. 2014.
Board Meetings

During the year. the Company held four Bourd Mectings on 16" May. 2014, 9°
1t - N P -
September. 2014, 28" November, 2014 and 27" February. 2075 respectively,

Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture.

Director / KMP Remuneration

Directors of the Company are neither paid any remuneration nor paid any sitting fee
for each sitting of the Board or committee thereof. Mr. Arjun Oberoi, Managing
Dircetor of the Company do not draw any remuneration from the Company. The Key
Managerial Personnel, viz: CFO and the Company Sccretary of the Company also do
not draw any remuneration from the Company.

Particulars of Employees

There are no employees in the Company drawing remuneration more than the limit as
prescribed under Section 197 read with Rule S of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration) Rules, 2014.

Awards

Awards won by Wildflower Hall. Shimla are as under:

| Best Relaxation Hotel in [ndia i Lonely Planet The Travel Award. 2014
| ‘
' Top 25 Hotels in India (Ranked Ist)  Trip Advisor, Travellers’ Choice Awards. 2015

| Top 25 Hotels for Romance in India i Trip Advisor, Travellers” Choice Awards. 2015
| (Ranked 2nd ) |!
|

Top 25 lotels for Service in India Trip Advisor. Travellers® Chor ards. 2015
I;(Ranked 3 rp Advisor, Travellers orce Awards, 20153
|

!
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Annexure
Format for the Annual Report o CSR Activities to be included in the Boa rd
Report

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy, including overview of projects
Or programs to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy

and projects and programs.

The Board of Directors, on the Tetommendation of the CSR Corumittee, had
formulated a Corporate Socja] Rcsponsibility Policy ("CSR”). As per the Policy
Statement, the Company’s CSR policy will focus on addressing the criticg) social,
economic and educationa] needs of the marginalized under-privileged and differently
abled children of the society. The policy wilj particularly direct jts energies to orphan,
homeless and differently abled children and care for their educational, nutritional,
heaith and psychological development needs. The policy will also focus on sanitation
including contributiop to the Swacch Bharat Kosh set up by the Central Government
for the promotion of sanitation, Contribution 1o Clean Ganga Fund set up by the
Central Government for rejuvenation riyer Ganga and afso coniribution to the Prime

Minister’s National Relief Fung,

The Board of Directors at the Boarg meeting held on 27% February, 2015, on the
fecommendation of the CSR Comumittee, approved ¢ CSR spend of Rg 14,53,000 (2%
of the average net profits of the Company made during the three immediate|y
preceding financia] years) for the financia) year 2014-15 on the following:

i) Special Home for speech and hearing impaired children in Village Dhallj,
Distt: Shimla:

i) Special Home for visually challenged Children in Village Dhall, Distt: Shimla.

These two homes fal] under Himacha] Pradesh State Council for Child Welfare,

Himacha] Pradesh.

The following work was fecommended by the CSR Committee in the aforfc‘esaid
two Institutions;- ‘ )

28) Relaying of the wiring of the Computer lab and school;

b) Relaying of the plumbing syster in certain areas;

¢) Repair of roof of the common hall/ and repair of some part of
classrooms:

d) Repair of class room fumiture with new additions;

¢) Repair of bunker with work op flooring, ceiling and new Mmattresses;

The CSR Policy and the activities of the Company are avaiiable in the helding
Company’s website www eihltd.com.



2. The Composition of the CSR Committee
The Composition of CSR Committee s ag under:
1) Mr. Arjun Oberoj- Chairperson;
1 Mr, Vikram Oberoj- Member:

1) Mr. Parthasarah; Mitra- Member;
V) Mr. Shashank Bhagat — Independen; Director and Member

4. Prescribed CSR Expeaditure (two percent of the amount g in Item 3 above),

Rs. 14,53 000 (Rupees Fourteen Jacs fifty three thousand).
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" 5. Details of CSR speat during the financial year
a) Tota] Amount to be Spent for the financjaj year : Rs 14,53,000;
b) Amount unspent, if any : Rg 3,29,000;
¢) Manner in which the amount Spent during the financial year js detailed below:
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6. In case the Company has f(ailed to spend the two percent of the average net profit
of the last three financial years or any part thereof, the Company shall provide the
reasons for not spending the amount in the Board report,

The reasons for not spending the amount of CSR spent is given in the Board Report
under the head “Corporate Social Responsibility”

7. The CSR Committee states that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR
Policy, is in compliance with the CSR Objectives and Policy of the Compasaw.

Arjun Oberoi
Managing Director

Arjun Oberoi
Chairperson — CSR Committee
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Annexure

MASHOBRA RESORT LTD

Director Appointment and Remuneration Policy

Ikis Director Appointment and Remuneration Policy (the "Policy") applies to the

Board of Directors (the "Board") of Mashobra Resort Limited (the "Company").

1.

3.

Purpose

The objective of this Policy is to provide a framewark and sct standards for the
appointment of high quality directors who have the capacity and ability to lead
the Company towards achieving sustainable development. The Company aims to
achieve a balance of experience and skill amongst its directors. It also defines
the role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,

Accountability
21 The Board is ultimately responsible for the appointment of directors.

22 In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) assesses and sclects candidates for
drrectors and recommends to the Board their appointment,

Role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The NRC is responsible for:

3.1 Reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skill, knowledge
and experience) of the Board and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board with due regard to Board Diversity;

3.2 Identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members, Key
Managerial and Senior Management Personnel:

3.3 Making recommendations to the Board on the appeintment, re-appointment or
removal of directors, Key Managerial and Senior Management Personnel,

3.4 Making recommendations for succession planning for directors, Key
Managerial and other Senior Management Personnel, including the Managing
Director (s), Whole-time Director(s) and CEQ.



3.5 Formulating criteria for evaluation of performance of every director including
independent directors and the Board;

36 Recommending remuneration payable to Senjor and Key Management
Personnel, executive and non-executive directors including Board sitting fees;

4. Appointment of Directors

4.I Matching the needs of the Company and enhancing the competencies of the
Board
are the basis for the NRC 1o select g candidate for appointment to the Board.
When recommending a candidate for appointment, the NRC will have regard

{o:

* asscssing the individya) against a range of criteria including but not
limited to industry eXperience, background, and other qualities required
{0 operate successfully in the position, with due regard to the benefits of
diversity of the Board;

the extent to which the individuai is likely to contribute to the overal

effectiveness of the Board and work constructively with the exisling

directors;

the skills and experience the individual brings to the role and how these

will enhance the skill sets and experience of the Board as a whale;

* the nature of positions held by the individual including directorships or
other relationships and the Impact they may have on the appointee's
ability to exercise independent Jjudgment;

* the time commitment required from a director to actively discharge his
duties to the Company.

*

42 The recommended director would:

Possess a degree in a relevant discipline;

Have experience of management in a diverse organization;

Have excellent interpersonal, communication and representational skills;
leadership skills;

Possess high standards of cthics, personal integrity and probity;
Continuously refresh his professional knowledge and skills.

* 6 ¢ ¢ o

For dewils of the personal specifications of a dircclor, please refer 1o
Attachment-1.

4.3 Every director should ensure that he can give sufficien lime and attention to

the Company's affairs and regularly attend Board meetings and other
commitiee meetings in which he is a member.

13
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4.4 The Policy aims 1o engage directors (including non-executive  apg
independent non-executive directers) who are highly skilled, competent and
experienced persons within one or more fields of business, finance, accounting
law, Mmanagement, sales, marketing, administration, corporate governance,
technical operations or other disciplines related to the business of the Company
and who shall be apje to positively carry out their Supervisory role over the
policies of the management of the Company and the general affairs of the

4.7 In assessing the independence of 4 fdon-executive director, the following
factors shall be taken into accoun;.

Independent director shal] mean a non-executjye director, other than 3
nominee director of the company:

a. who, in the opinion of the Board, is a person of integrity and possesses
relevant expertise and experience,

b. (i) who is or Was not a promoter of the Company or its holding,
subsidiary or associate Company;

(ii) who is not related to promoters or directors in the company, its
holding, subsidiary or associate company;

. apart from receiving director’s femuneration has or had ng pecuniary
relationship with the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate
company, or theijr promoters, or directors, during the rwo immediately
preceding financiaj Years or during the curreqt financial year;

d. none of whoge relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or
ransaction with the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate
company, or their promoters, or directors, amounting to two per cent
Or more of jts gross

€. turmover or totg| income or fifs lakh rupees or such higher amount as
may be prescribed, whichever ig lower, during the two immediately
preceding financial Y€ars or during the cyrrep; financial year.

£ Who, neither himself nor any of his relatjves —

(i) holds or has held the position of a key Managerial personne) or is
or has been employee of the company or its holding, subsidiary or

14



associate company in any of the three financial years immediately
preceding the financig] year in which he s proposed to be

appointed,

(i1) is or has been an ewmnployee or proprictor or 4 partier, in any of the
three financial years immediate|y preceding the financial vear in
which he is proposed to be appointed, of --

(A)a firm of auditors or tompany secretaries in practice or cost
auditors of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate
company; or

(B)any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transactiop
with the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate
company amounting to ten ber cent or more of the gross
turnover or such frm;

(iii} holds together with his relatives two per cent or more of the total
voting power of the company; or

(tv) is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever name called, ot any
non-profit organisation that receives twenty-five per cent or more
of its receipts from the company, any of its promoters, directors
or its holding, subsidiary or associate Ccompany or that holds two
per cent or more of the 1o1a) voting power of the company;

(v) is a material supplier, service provider or customer or a lessor or
lessee of the company;

g who is not less thap 2] years of age.

Explanation

For the purposes of the sub-clause (]):

,
Y
- 2
L

I “Associate” shall mean a company which is an “associate” as defined in
Accounting  Standard (AS)23, “Accounting for Investments ip
Associates in Consolidated Financia] Statements, issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India;

i “Key Managerial Personne]” shall mean “Key Managerial Personne!l” as
defined in section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013

fii,  “Relatjve” shall mean “relative” as defined in section 2(77) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules prescribed there under

15



S. Letter of Appointment

5.1 Each direcior will be issued 4 Letter of Appointment signed by the
Chairperson of the Board.

6. Appointment Procedyre

6.1 The NRC shaj) ensure that the appoinmeny of directors wil| e In terms of
the Policy and fecommendations made 1 the Board for appointment.

7.1 The NRC shalj ensure that the appointment angd r'emuneratjon payable (o
the Managing Directorgs), CEO, Whole-time Directors, Manager, if any
are (n accordance with the provisions of Chapier X111 (Sections 196 to

panies Act, 2013 and Companijes

anagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

not draw any

Temuneration from the Company.

7.2 The NRC may recommend g suitable sitting fee reimbursement of
incidcmals, travel and other €Xpenses to n

On-executive directors ag may
read with the Companies

(Appointment and Rem uneration of Manageria] Persormc[) Rules, 2014

Familiarizatiog Program

The Management will famjl

2)  The Oberoj Dharma;

b) Company’s History, Strycture and the Business Model:
¢) Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company:;
d) Past 3 (three) years

the Compan ¥
e) Interaction with other Director
Execytives of the Company

larize the Independent Directors on the following:

S on the Boarg and “with the Senior

Chairperson- .Vdmination & Remuneratiog Chaifpérson
Committee

16
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Attachmeny 1

MASHOBRA RESORT LIMITED

Personai Specification for Directors

Qualifications

- Degree holder in relevant disciplmes (e.g. management, accountancy, legal,
sales, marketing, administration, finance, and Corporate Govemnance and
hospitality industry related disciplines): or

Recognised specialist,

Experience
- Experience of management in a diverge organization;

- Experience in accounting and finance, administration, corporate, legal and
strategic planning;

- Ability to work effectively with other members of the Board,
Skills

- Excellent Interpersona), communication and representational skills;
- Leadership skills;

- Extensive team building and Mmanagement skills;

- Strong influencing and negotiating skils;

- Continuous professional development 10 refresh knowledge and skills;

4. Abilities ang Attributes

- Commitment 1o high standards of ethics, personal integrity and probity;

17




Annexure

FORMNO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial yearended on 31.03,2015

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Admim‘snadon) Rules, 2014,

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS;

(TGN T "m@&mz&a R —
2. Registration Date 13/12/1995 ]

3. Name of the Company — MaSHOBI RESORT LIMITED
3 X L L MITEL —
| COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES, 1

4, Category/Sub-category
| of the Company  INDIAN NON GOVERNMENT COMPANY

| 5. Address o the , HOTEL WILDFLOWER HALL |
| Registered office &  CHHARABRA, SHIMLA -171 03 2
f ' contact details ! HIMACHAL PRADESH, INDiA :
‘ ! | Phone: 01772648585 pay. 01772648686 '
6 Whether Teieg company  Ng T — B o S
- i j
T Name, Addressg  NOT APPLICABLE ~ ——— ~ ————— T
; ( contact details of the

| Registrar & Transfer ,
L ifeentifany, | ——

i

—— Name and Deso i - T — :
‘f S.No. | Name angd Description of main 1 NICCode ofthe 195 1o total turnover of the ]

|

- ; products / services Product/service company —J
1 o —_— T —_——
|1 . HOTEL SERVI(;E _ 9963{996%1_1&0‘1 * 7 1@%

- PARTICULARS oFf HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES-

' SNo. | Name and Address i CIN/GLN \""“_"_H_oﬁng/ 'T/CE“%'T\p—pchéT
' [ of the Company i ' Subsidiary | Share e

|
. ' '/ Associate | held Section
|1 | EIH Limjted, 4, LSSIOlWB1949PLC017981 | HOLDING | 78.79% o 2(46)

: f Mangoe Lane, [ |
| Kolkata- 700001 | ,

; ,
\_L_‘M;.—L____ﬁ e I e———




(i) Category-wise Share Holding
\r__ — Cthe Peomr — e
; Fategory No. of Shares held a atthe beginning of " No.ofShares held at the eng ofthe |~ %

Sh‘ar_eholders ’ the year{As on 31 “March-2014; year(As on 31-March- 2015] / Change !

T I PP “‘*‘K,_‘ i ;
m Total o, of " Dam [ Physical  Tora] [ % of I‘ during

’ ! the year |

jma i | | Total | at | ! Tota! ’

t | _ -'Shares’ . - Sh, Shares ‘\ ]

X;Promoters - , , ‘
(1) Indian \%\%\h\—?:‘;‘—w- &\\L s

" a) Indj Ividualy B \rk‘/‘* - ‘7\’\——7\ a\\{

| i H ! ’ i

1HUF ‘
, {

b] Centraf Govt T {
. €) State Govt(s) 7000000 | 700000¢ 7000000 OOOOO 2121 N

d) Bodies Corp. NIL | 26000000 i 26000000 26000000 [ 7879 NIL

o A
€) Banks /Fi | |

gl — e *\J
f) Any other _ I | f | J

i Total : _\r\>\—’ - ﬁ\f\~

shareholding of !

j | : ‘ |
, Promoter (A} ( ; . |
—_— o | NIL | 33000000 | 330 00000 NIL 33000000_} 33000000 IOO! NIL —
i

____ﬁ _HR:,_\ - {—R—+\_ﬁ Hﬁ___ ._’[_ ~
" B. Public j i | ’ T E——

Shareholdmg ) | |
T Instiran Insurunons } T r ]
. !’ —

J a) Mutual Funds |

. b) Banks / / Fl

¢} Central Govt l
) Stare Govigs) . T —
o) Venture ™ —— T —
Capital Fupds " ] 4 { | :
T —— hml - — —_—,"\,—\‘ \J\f Ty

i ) Insurance

C ‘
! Companies i | | ] | ; [ l
g)Fs ) ? J : | !

h) Foreign |
Venture Capltal



[ i) Others } ; , | J,' |' ‘l ) |
| (specify) | J | - xi L |
ISubtoal T ] - “"] j“ ' o ST
(B)(1):- o . , |
e — ML ML ML NL L NIL NIL ML NI
[Z.Nem —— — T+ ; f&“ﬂ“ﬁ B ,
| Institutions i ’ : ! ! ‘
ﬁp‘“lh—&_ “——"k;,_._{\.‘,‘ .- ~———~\l_ -———\‘.ﬁ_—‘y _—I\ —

' a) Bodies Corp. , | |
B — e By By S s S Wi
_ii) Overseas o : ) R B
LDiindividuals | T Tme——— L ] T T
- 1) Individua, ! .

shareho!ders : a :
| hoiding nominaj j | ’ f

‘ share capital ‘ l |

/ |

}go_toﬂs_ 1lakh A ‘—L—\_..‘_—J\*xjm-ﬁ o ‘_L_“j

| 1) Individual | ! '
shareholders ;

holding nominal I / | ,. | v |

i |

{ H i
H ' |
i

~share capital in

' excess of Rs 1 ! : i
. { b
;E!ﬂ._ .m—_ﬁlg_._é_ﬁ__‘_ — ’ ._.___[_‘ — ] —— _._L‘ e e———e
I ¢} Others ! , :
~(specify) | ‘ , | 1
rNon Resident ;’ ' ! ! ! ;
| ; ,
ndlans ¢, B e e S N B L
! Overseas ; ‘ ! : , ,
Corporate ; ’ i | ‘ f
Bodies . ! ' ‘
e T — e ———— . ""*‘M. B S e — + - R
’ Foreign T _ . T i

| Narionals ) _‘_1_.__ ﬁ._.‘.__;v_, - St U S ,._i__‘rg____

Clearing _T
Members gﬂ__v — e —_——
Trusts - ; . I : ] } _ : —T_E_J
Foreign Bodies - ) i
DR ; ‘ | |
—_— ; e ——— ———‘.—- 5& “J—\ —"Lg_,*—*_———l- o ——
Sub-total [ :
_(B)_@)_ _INL_ NXL ___NL|  NL _Nl;4 . ___NIL | _Ayl‘L_"_.__NM_ﬁ_ NIL
Total Public f | } | | '
|

Shareholding

| (B=(B)(1)+ : |
L (B)(2 _L.____H _“_A\W\J_ — __L ——
i C. Shares held — J
" by Custodian | ;

for GDRs & i : /

(ADRs N NIL . NILi  NIL| NIL " NIL NIL NIL 1 _NIL
~-~r e — T ————— — %%__H“—

’_Erand Total : | I

(A+B+C) NIL 330009&(} 310_030@_;“1_00__ NIL 33000300 ; 33000000 | 100 NiL i
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters. AS PER ANNEXURE - 3

fdsv‘j\lof—sﬁ;re}]o\uér‘g ! Shareholding a’rﬂwé—géginning of | Shareho'ldingat the end of the year o changein

| Name | the year ’ Shareholding ;
| : No. of I %of  gor No.of | o oftoral %of | duzing the !
| , Shares | tota] " Shares Shares : Shares ofthe ’ Shares [ Year /
' { Shares of * Pledged ; ‘ Company Piedged / i :

the encumber } encumber -
company edto torg) ed to tora|

1\;\_ m‘f—\ —_— _Shares sha_res' |
- - 'M~\J\~w—~ T

AS PER ANNEXURE - 1 |
T — [ "T\“ﬁ“"x‘v\‘[“" -

[ ]
T

i

o ———— — i . _
S 1 \J_N_Ntwq_ — ‘J\,ﬁ-&r\> —

{iit) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specily, if there s Do change)

sNo Particu)ars } Shareholdmg at the Cumulative Shareholdmg ‘
| ' beginaing of the year | during the year ’
| i - = by A —

i

.

fNo. of % of totg] No. of TA; of?éée;{

: Shares . shares ofthe | shares | shares of the

X ! i

. | compan ' compan :
.\L&_g,\ pany —Pany

’—‘ QKM ; !
At the beginning of the year 133000000 | 100 | 33000000 100 -
f‘\.\ J‘ —— —ﬁ~\\_‘s—-_»“—{-\+ —_ - — Yy — —
- : i Date  wige Increase / Decrease " , ;,

I " Promoters Sharehofdfng during the !
‘ "year specifying  the reasons  for : ! NOCHANGE
| increase / decrease (eg. allotmen; :

‘ /tr ansfer/ bonus/ Sweat equity etc.): : ;!
At the end oftheyear i . ;
y 33000000 100 33000000 100
\_L_\_:%\NJ__,_-, 4N -\-ﬁ.—g_\\____‘,w —2Vy

|
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iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
{Other than Directors,

!

|

Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

FF For Each of the Top 757 ™ 'T”Er?hJEuTg'E'tﬁe’“TéthDaﬁn? T
Shareholders | begirning Shareholding during the
f ‘ of the year | year ‘
[ No.of % of total | No. of ‘A‘%ﬂc;f&ﬁrh_
, f shares shares of | shares ! shares of ”
| [ the | " the ;
. the jear— b — - (company | —fcOmpany
e el the e | B
’_‘ | Date wise Increase / Decreage in ! ,
) i Proamoters Shareho]ding during the
/ ! year specifying the reasons for increase | NOT APPLICABLE
/decrease {(e.g. allotment / transfer /]
bonus/ swear equity ete);
R T — Y iy S
(v) Sha reholding of Directors ang Key Manageria) Personnej:
§N‘?Ha§:h‘mﬁ?ﬁ§3??§c71‘dfih}“' [ Shareholding st the " — * Cumulative Shareholding
| | Directors and each of the * beginning ; during the /
; Key Managerial Personpef Lﬂﬂ'ﬂ’ﬁ; I year o _J'
}' No. of shareg I % of rotal { No. of shares } % of rota) i
: shares of the | shares of the
, . Company ‘ . SOmpany
"m}h;b;;gfan';a‘g“o_f:ﬁ(;y&;T? T T T
- f‘*D;{re' ‘Jféé‘_“znc‘réés?”/*“ T “, o T T
Decreage in Promoters : ' '
. | Sharehoiding during the year NOT NOT —Nor o nor J}
| Kspecify)'ng the reasons for APPLICABLE / APPLICABLE j APPLICABLE [’ APPLICABLE
| | increase /decreage [eg. 1 | ]
[ allotment / transfer / bonus/ J) / f | |

| lswea:equityetc._J:_ L o
! Att_h_e ‘ep‘dpr:the_){uea‘rm )

L

V. JNDEBTEDNESS
not due for payment,

—-

“Indebtedness of the Company Including interest butstanding/aceryeq but

T ——— e T T —
r - Secured ‘

i " Loans Unsecured Deposits “ Total

excluding Loans [ (1) | Indebtedness

] " deposits {Rs) ] j (Rs) {
' e — - (_RS) - —_— —_——— - —_— ]
Mindebiednass at the beginning of | T ; ,‘ ‘
-fefnancialyear 7 —— .
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0

g

/:)Pr o o | 1,324914 5,600,000 T T 6,324,914 _}'

msyamm‘___%w\“, L 58289
.} i) lnterest dye but not paig v( ,
f '\“"N"‘\‘j‘*“_\x'\“‘f I B B ST
I”Rtia_ue\dbmi\\mjj —— S o
j» ~_ Total (i+ti+1ii) ’ , .
- T T e T

Panctal T e
| 000 : T Y5000 ,r
!

| 950, i i

| *Addition 7 7 o ; 7 / [ . '
- _ Y [ seegs
/{x‘g‘@%"‘\%““ = _"7;_?0‘1—74\8 B e e ;EO“W-—-’
’ , ' b - ! ' X
' Net Change ' | |

N2 —— ————d ——— _.} I S T — L ]
f)ndebtedness atthe end of the “ - ? . [

f
i

/ financiy) Yyear ! ‘ ; , ,
’ A LN _ _— S
- 1745062 50,00,000 ¢ " 87457582 ;

/LJZﬂrL”‘LPBMJi‘i’lM — ' T T ——
- - - ! . ]

i1 i | ! !

ri’)._ﬁﬂffﬂw_fﬂwﬁm____“ T T

iii} Interest accrued but not dye , ‘

,L‘ T T T 1745067 50,00,000 " mzxq

} ' T IETS , i

— . Tota (J:{I_-tt”)

L Secureq Loans obligations are $ecured by hypothecation of Vehicles underlying the leases

[sN” 'T‘:Emﬁﬁéﬁtﬁ“?‘ "'““Na\mg'c}‘fﬁB}WT‘E/‘AfaEa“geF T TTotl T

e e
,

—_— T RS |
— salapy | - — ] —————
/’I Gross salary - . _ NOTAPRLICAGLE o “’““T R
| . {a) Salary as Per provisiong NOT APPLICABLE RS e e ;

; + Contained 1n sectyop 17(1) ofthe ¢ /
| Income-tax Act, 1944 ' J
4 u\ru\s_‘_w__;-_-“_lxﬂk_#_~g._q
' {b) Valye of perquisitas u/s17(2) 7 NOT APPLICABLE [ e e R !

/ . lncome-taxAct, 1961 '

|

|
J
{
|

ary under mﬁfm‘s‘@ T T Iy

‘ (¢) Profitsin Iie&‘ﬁszﬁary under |
| Section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 ) ) o
L2 Stock Option ™ | NOTAPPLICABLE ..~ o e T
NN.W e ;ﬁ—'\‘— _— \\l\Lﬁ "\____\-—l ——



J -~ a5 % of profit

j Others, s ecify... —_ e, ‘L !
_ NL — —_—— —-\-‘.

[s Others, 2thers, please speCJFy NO APPL!CABLE oo :

'3 SweatEunly T womppucmmpL 14 .
14 Commission - ‘NO APPLICABLE /h ft‘f..\“’i_ .

Lo Total (A NO"APPLICABLE _'L

f

] . NOT ApPLT YOT APPLICABLE Jd:;-__m- e E;Eq.
B. Remuneraﬁon to other d)rectors
ij_\h—' Particulars oFRemunerauon ‘-H{‘ ST Name cf[)nrec tors TTgta?Arnount ,
- TN*\\H T B .‘..-\“‘7
- *\*\ “T"‘“"*\L“\H
, I IndependenrDzrectors T NOTAPPLICABLE [ L !,'.", J’ -
| lFee for attending hoarg NOTAPPL!CABLE e e T
[ L.com: COmmittee mee.h_ngs _ m/ — _.'_ - o
) LCommlsswn —— E‘JO[ APPLICABLE T &’" j e
o | Others, please s specify e NOTAPBLIGABLE - T ]
[ i Torl (1) ) 1NOTAPPLIC‘ABLE ’T* T
/ 2 Other Non- Execubve Drrectors NOTAPPLICAB[L J | e 1 _“TL__ —
Fee forartend!ng board NOTAPPLICABL,E H{'ﬂ R ‘7
Committee meetmgs ( | I J
Comszswn NOTAPPLICABLE aslE | e [ Tt
&hers please specn’y NO’TAPPLICABLE = N o '
1 Total[ZJ NOT APp] APPLICABL T P "
- *;a‘—\ﬁ—‘“- — — ———
f ‘ota (B) (1+2) - NOTAP"L[CABLE i R N
Total Ma Manager ial | NOT APPLICABLE ~ RIS [ e .
} Remuneranon _____ ! 4 L ——
.. | Overail C_gﬂmg:ziperthe Act NQ:FAAPPL[CABLENL‘:'»-:\< S ES
C.VREMUI‘\JERATJON TO KEY MANAGER|4L PERSONNE_L_OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
S Particularg ofRemuneratxon Key Managenal Personne) :’
= \\“‘“ CEO T /Cs\vjzjfo“’frorg:\f
1 *Erosssalary T — TNO'TAPPLACABLE NA _TNATT N
— = e SUCUS
) {a) Salary asperprowszons Contained jn — o~ F—
| section 2 17(1) of the Income. CaxAct, 1961 _ . o
] (b) Value of of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income. ] / — — o~ 1

! tax Act, 1963
' (¢} Profits in lieu of salary under secm‘hx—-\

: 17{3) Income- -tax Act, 1961
f? Srock Option

3 ySwearEqulty " T
— T————

4 ‘ Comrmsswn
- _—\.RH‘,A

Cas% ofproﬁt —
1 | others spec:fy

5 ] Others, lease g ecify ]
i O[a] . : ‘k i
T e T —— —— — i —— — e D




VIl PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING gF OFFENCES:

|

i Type ‘?atlon ofthe Briet "f'ereta;’ls of '“**A—uthorlty : App;:;l_made
| Companies Description Penalty / [RD / NCL T/ ifany (give
Act : Punishment, COURTY Details)

f Compoundmg ‘
: ! fees imposed i
e ‘ _ —_ e S —_——
"R COMPANY |
*MM‘H‘ — ——— W‘_q_“ﬁ_’_
j ' NIL NIL NIL

v‘wPena)tyk«‘T NIL J_E“’ ‘ | |
“Punishment | NIL I T *TK”TWMW e
Compounding T TR T R "ML

LB' . DIRECTORS e T 1 —_—

7“"‘?[“"’?1}; T NI T TS

[ Peralty T NIL

! | i |
_‘T__ﬁ“ﬂ'__ e ——— e - fi——
Punishment NIL NIL [ NIL NIL ' NIL
' Compounding | NIL I NIL ' ; NI [ NIL NI ',f
..... — N,_%“__,ﬁ ————— _.R_Lh%___,_._‘—\_ ——— -~
I C.OTHER DFFICERS IN DEFAULT ‘
Féﬂafty B —— NIL ML T N T
P ——— e N1 T e ——— ———
" Punishment NIL NIL NIL " NIL I NIL
fr Compounding | NlL " | Ni_L*"*“‘TNTE T I XA N_Mh?u T
______ T — e T e e ]
B) Shareholdin of Promoters- ANNEXURE__] e ——
’ Name of shareholder r:Shareholdmg atthe o Shareholding At the endof 1 g change in ;
beginnmg ‘ the year ' shareholding during
o _of the year treyear 7
j' " No. of © % of total % of tota!
i " shares . shares of the shares ! shares of the - ‘
X | tompany | company I
J J
GOVERNMENT OF J 7000000 21 21 7000000 | 2121 ) 7
! H‘MACHAL PRADES
EIH UMITED 55005 | 25999995~ 7859 ~ 78 79 23999993 f 78.79 , o j
x.“__*_qj‘m .,-R“T_ﬁ__ ; — ]
OBEROI HOTELS PRIVATE 1 — ! 1 _ NIL
_UMITED . : — ‘ - ‘
OBEROI HDLDINGS" J —_ NIL s

PRIVATE LIMITED
_ﬁ_‘__L_._ —— H\_I
| OBEROI PRO} PROPERTIES f JNIL i
LPRIVATE LiIMITED ,
1 OBEROI INVESTMENTS R i NH R

i PR!VATELIM!TED ‘

TORE EROIPLAWT T ‘”"T’Ff TT!L_ S

T’FD

L

| e . o T R |
Total 33000000 floo ['33000000 100 CNIL ,
Lo — -\_L\ i ‘J\M_,__ — ]
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- RAY & RAY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTA NTS
o

6 CHURCH LANE,' KOLKATA - 700 001, POST BOX no. 706
Telephoneg - +91-33~22489861, 22438562. 22309584, Facsimile (033) 22480547
SURE, KOLKATA, E-mail F Ryaray @vsn) com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS oF MASHOBRA RESORT LIMITED

Report op the Financiaj Statements

We have audited the accompanying financia Statements of MASHOBRA RESORT
LlMlTED(“the Company"), Which Comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2015
the Statement of Profit ang Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended
and a Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, Including the Accounﬁng Standargs specifieq
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules.
2014, This responsibility alsq includes Maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the Provisions of the Act for safeguardmg the assets of
the Company and for pPreventing and detecting frauds ang other irregu!arities;
selection ang application of appropriate accounting policies: Mmaking judgments and
estimates that are reasonabie and prudent: ang design, implementation and
‘naintenance of adeguate internai financial controls, that were Operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and Completeness of the accounting TeCords, releyvant to
the Preparation and Presentation of the financial Statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from Material mfsstatemem, whether due to fraud or error

Our 'esponsibifity is to ©Xpress an opinion on these financial statements based on

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting ang
audiling standarqgs and matters which are required to pe inc'uded in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act ang the Rules Made thereunder

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specifieg
~ under section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan ang perform the audit to obtain feasonable assurance
about whether the financia| statemen'’s are free from Material misstatement
An audit involyes performing Procedures to obtain aud evidence about the amounts
and the disclosures jn the financia| statements, The procedures se'ected depenc on
the auditor's judgment, including  the assessment of the risks of Materia!
Misstatement of the financiar Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those rigk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to
the Company's Preparation of the financial statements that give a true and farr view

MUMBA| o NEW DELHI o BANGALORE ® CHENNAJ
Ciry Office . 53D, Mirza Gbalib Stree:, Kolkata . 700 016, Pn. 404 8107, 4064 8108, 4064 8109, E-uay) - Taywray Baine!mail in
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstan-ces, but not
for the purpose of EXpressing an opinjon on whether the Company has in place an
adequate interna| financial controls System over financia| 'eporting and the overating
effectiveness  of such  controls An audit  also Inciudes évauating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained js sufficient ang appropriate to
provide a basis for oyr audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of oyr Information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the Information requireq by the
Act in the manner SO required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the

company as at 31 March, 2015 - and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Emphasis of Matters
We craw attention to the following mattars in the Notes to the financial statements.

lotment of shares pending settlement of legal issues between
Government of Himachal Pradesh and £iH Limited and the stay order awarded by
the Honb'le High Court of Himachal Pradesh and note 25(e) regarding ongoing
itigation between EIH Ltd., the holding company and the Government of Himachal
Pradesh. The said note describes the uncertainty rejated to the outcome of the
above legai matter ,
Note 25(a)(ii) to the financial statements regarding erosion of paid up share capital of
the company by its accumulated iosses and the accounts being prepared on going

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.As required by the Companies { Auditor's Report) Order. 2015, issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (1 1) of section 143 of the Act
We give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 of the
sa.d Order,

Z.As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that

a) We have Sought and obtaineq all the information and explanations which to the
best of our Knowledge and belief were necessary for the PUrposes of our aydit

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far a5 it appears from our Examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
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d) inour opinion, the aforesaig financial Statements Comply with the Accounting
Standards Specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules. 2014. :

e} On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31

Section 164(2) of the Act.
) With respect to the other matters to pe included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors ) Rules, 2014 in our

opinion and to the best of our information ang according to the éxp:anations given to

0. The impact of pending litigations against the Company on its financial position
in its financia statements is not ascertainable gs indicated in note 25(a). 25(b) and

il The company did not have any long-term contracts ‘ncluding derivative

. There were no amount which were required to pe transferred to the Investor

For RAY & RAY
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration, No,3O1O72E)

~, Abhijit Neogi
Place' Shimia PARTNER
Dated:14th May, 2015 Membership No.61380
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b) As per the information and explanatjon given to us, physijcal verification of fixed

assets have been carried out n erms of the pPhased Programme of verification of

the fixeq assets adopteg by the Company angd no discrepancies Were noticed on

such Verification. |n our opinion, the frequency of verification 'S reasonable having
$s.

(i) (a)The physical verification f inventory has been Conducted 4t reasonable
Intervals by the Mmanagement.

(b)  The Procedures of Physical verification  of :’nventory followed by the

Management are reasonanle and adequate N relation to the size of the Company
and the nature of jts business.

size of Operation of tha Company ang nature of inventory held, the discrepancies
. noticed on physical Verification ag Compared to gk records were not material gy
. has been Properly deaj wWith in the books of account

(fiiy (iii) 'Thevcompany has not granted any loans Secured or unsecured to CoOmpanies,
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(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The Company has not accepted any deposits, and asg such the reouiremen: of
clause (v) is not applicable to the company

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records U/s

(a) According to the records of the Ccompany the company is regular in depositing
with the appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance. income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory duyes
applicable to it According to the information ang explanations given to us, no
undisputed amount payable in respect income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value addeg tax, and cess were oufstanding
as at 31 March,2015 for & period of more than € months from the date they
became payable.

(b) According to the information ang explanations given to us . there are no dyesg
of income tax wealth tax, valye added tax customs duty, excise duty and cess
which have not been deposited on account of any disputes However, according to
information and explanations given to us the following dues of service tax have not
been deposited by the companies on account of dispute.

'Name  of "Nature of Amount
‘the statute ques | the amount dispute
/ _ (nRs _relates ' pendin L
i Service Tax Service Tax | 6163974/ Financial year | Customs  Excise
i ( ‘ ~and Service Tax
,’ [ 2004-2005 to " Appeliate

i ; 2008-2009 Tribunal i

( “ _\:

(¢) There has not been any amount which is required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fung by the Company. Therefore, the clause
vii(c) is not applicable to the company.

“T-\“%{(H"“‘—x
- Period to which | Forum where the
Is

The accumulated losses of the company are more than fifty percent of its net
worth. The company has not incurred any cash loss during the financia| year
covered by our audit and in the immediately preceding financial year.

Accordmg to the information ana explanatiorg given to us by the Management, the
company has not defaulted in 'epayment of dues to g financal institutions/ Bank

According to the information ang explanations given to yg by the management , the



RAY & RAY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTYANTS

(xi)

{xif)

company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank of
financial institutions.

The Company has not taken any term loan from bank or financial institution,

During the course of our examination of the books of daccount carried out in
accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Practices, we have neither
come across any instance of fraud on or by the company nor we have been
informed of any such case by the management.

For RAY & RAY
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Regiatration No.301072E)

Abhijit Neogi

‘

Place: Shimia FARTNER
Dated:14th May, 2015 Membership No.61380




MASHOBRA RESORT LIMITED

Balance Sheet
As at 31se March, 2015

1 EQUITY AND LIABILIT(ES
} SHAREHOLI)ERS‘ FUNDS
8) Share Capital
b) Reserves and Surplus

2 ADVANCE TOWARDS SHARES

3 NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
2) Long Term Borrowinp,s
b Other Long Term Liabilities
<) Long Terin Provisions

4 CURRENT LIABILITIES
o} Trade Payables
b} Otker Curreny Ligbilities
<) Shon Tern Provisoins

TOTAL

Il ASSETS
1 NON CURRENT ASSETS
B) Fixed Assets

i) Tangib?c Asscty
Gross blgek
Less: Deprecigtion
Nel Block

1) Intangibly Assels undee Developmen 8nd Implemenigtjon

b) Deferred Tax Assels (Net)
<€) Long Term Loans and Advances

2 CURRENT ASSETS
8} laventorios
b) Trede Reeeivables
¢) Cash and Bank Balances
9 Short Tenm Logng and Advances
¢; Othee Current Asscis

TOTAL

Significang Accounting Poligies
The notes asrc an {ntegral part or these Finencip Stazemens,

This is the Balance Sheet referred to jn gur eport of even daie,
ForRay & Ray .
‘ajiered Accountants

" AohfitNgogi '
Partne-
Mcmbe\jfﬂp No. 61380

Shimia
141h May, 2315

NOTES Ropecs

2 330,000,000
3 (532,57C,770)

AS Bt 315t Mapeh

015
Rupeay

2004
Rupees

330,000,000

(617830612

(202,570,770)

{287,630,641)

1,361,925 454 1,361,925 454

6.058,587 3,903,261

5 - 3,820
6 1,780,641 1,328,719

— o

7,839,223 7.240,80¢

7 17,628,861 14,564,397
g 17,408,363 16,062,693
9 36,374,290 13,577,690

———r eI

71,411,514 64,184,780
_._‘_\—_“_.\__

1,238,605,42( 1,145,720,397

Y
901,536,25) £92,9:7270
‘378.974,4}1“ 319.775,404
322,561,820 573,141,866
500,273

523,072,093 573,141 866

1 102,886,293 134,252.420;
i2 986,466 1,003 425
626,944,857 708,337

13 14,362,565 15011750
4 16,919,216 9,786,486
' 501,810,900 391,807 225
16 75,811,781 18,147 073
576,146

v ascier

Chiel Prgadisl Officer

Company Scerztary

611,660,569

437,322,680

T ———
4,238,605,42] 1143 720,392

Managing Duecior

Direcioy

N



MASHOBRA RESORT LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Lass
For the Year ended 31st March 2015

INCOME
I Reveonue from Operations
11 Other Gperating Income
1 Other Income
Y Totw} Revenue (I+11+111)

vV Expenses
Cost of Materials Consymed
Enwpicyee Benefits Expease
Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses (Refer Note 25¢)

Oier Expenses
Tolal Expenscs

Yl Prufitbefore Taxation (v.v)
v1

Tax Expense

Current Tax

Less: MAT Credit Enlitlement
Net Current Tax

Mat Credit Eatitlement Adjusiment for Eartier Year

Deferred Tax
Y111 Profit for the period {V1i.v1)
IX  FEarminags per Equily Share

(1) Basic
'2) Diluted

The nates are an integral part of Ihese Financial Statements,

Ycar ended 3ist March

This is the Statemen: of Profit and Lass referred 1o 1n onr report of even date

Ior Ray & Ray
Chanered Accaumants

v, -t M
Abhljit Neagi
Partner

MembershipWo. 61380

Shimla
14th May, 2015

2018 2014
NQTES Rupecs Rupees
8 338,777,025 292,013,38!
84 1,097,758 911,521
20 40,5¢1,327 28,797,905
380,436,110 11,722,807
2! 21,725.817 20,268,749
2 57,237,422 50,193 950
23 1,157,445 1,405 946
37,589,682 22,430,210
2 121.428,385 128,502,448
239,138,721 222,803,303
141,297,389 98,919,504
29,617,000 6,353,000
(29,617,000) (5.872.000)
—
- 781,000
(408,846)
39,958,880 39,550,039 46,315,447
T lot7e705¢ 51,823,057
25(m)
3.08 .57
3.08 .57
r
Chief Finlincial Officer " Managing Direcisr
Company Scciffar, - Diredtor




MASHOBRA RESORT LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement

For the Yesr cnded 314t March 2015
Year ended 31st March

2015 204
Rupecs Rupees
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profie / (Loss) belore Tax 141,297,389 98,919,504
Adjustments for:
Depreeiation 37,589,682 22.430.21¢
Interest Paig 1,157,445 1,405,946
Sale / Adjustment of Fixad Assels 776,005 688,876
Interest Recejved (40,561,327) .’28,797,902)‘
Opcrating Profit before Working Capital Changes 140,259,194 94,646,63;
Adjustments tor:
Trade & Qther Reccivabics (5,743,24]) (57,722)
Inventorics 649,185 (2,510,405)
Trade Payables 2,783,208 5,254,596
Cash Generated from Operations 137,948,346 97,333,100
Interest Paid (1,157,445) (1.405,944)
Payment/(Refund) of Direct Taxes (Net) (29,012,569) (5,572,758)
laterest received on Income Tax refund 123,404 .
Net cash from Operating Astivities IO7,90L7T6 96,354.396
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchasc of Fixed Assels (11,458,689) (4,597,280)
Sale of Fixed Asscts 333,334 -
Intesest Reeeived 38,253,139 28,578,272
Net cash used in Investing Activitics 27,127,784 23,980,992
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend Paigd (23,100,000)
Tax on Dividend e (3,925,845) -
Net Cash used in Financing Acivities (27.025& "
Net Increase in Cash & Cash Equival!:nts(A*B"C) IBBA,(»)EJ.(;:/S— W
- ANl SR TN
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of year 393,807,225 279,77.1—,837
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end ofyear 501,810,900 ‘\W

Notes:
I. Tte Cash Flow Statement has been Prepared in indireet method
2. Cush and Cash Equivalents represent Cash end Bank Balanees. Cash and Bank Balances inclyde
¥ 386,275,747 (2014 - ¥ 310,504,013) deposited in a separatc Bank Accoun: in terms o Hon'be
Himacha) Pradesh High Court Order Dated 17Tth Deeember 2003,

3. Additions to Fixed Assels are stated inelusive of movements of Capite! Work-in-progress between the

beginning and end of the period and treated as g Pert ol the Investing Aetivities,
This is the Casn flow Statement referred 1o ir our report of ever, dalc

For Ray & Ray
Chartercd Aceountants

S

/
Abhijit Neosj
Partner | .
Membership No. 61380

S

Company Setreragy (Dir‘cc(or
Shimia
l4th May, 20;5

Chief &:nancial O ffizer Manag:n'g'g Direetor



MASHOBRA RESORT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOQUNT (Contd.)

1
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Finarcial Statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the
Generally Accepled Aecounting Prineiple, Accounting Standards rotified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
relevant provisions thereof,

USE OF ESTIMATES

In peeparing the Financial Statements in conformity with accounting prineiples generally accepted in India, management is
required to make estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities as at the date of the Finaneia) Stazements and the amount of revenue and expenses during the reported
period. Actual results could differ frem those estimates, Any revision to such estimates is recognized in the period Lhe same is
determined.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Reverue of hotel operations is recognized when the secvices are rendered and the same becomes chargeable. Revenue from Shop
License Fee included under “Other Services” is recognized on accrual basis as per terms of contract,
Revenue from interast is acerued and recognized on time basis and determined by contraciual rate of inserest.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS, EXTRA ORDINARY ITEMS & CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Prior period adjusiments, extra ordinary items & changes in accounting polieies having malerial impact on the fnaneial affairs of
the Company are disclosed.

FIXED ASSETS

Taugible Fixed Assets - Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition and subsequent improvement therete inclusive of tax,
duties, freight and other incidental expenses relaling to acquisition, improvement and installation. Interest during construction
period on borrowings to finance fixed assets is capitalized,

Assets acquired on lease are capitalized at the Present Value of minimum iease paymenls and are stated al the caplialized value net
of accumulated depreciation/amortization.

Capital Work-in-Progress comprises of cost of fixed assets :hat are not yet ready for their internded vse at the reporting dale.
Intangible Assets - Intangible assets are stated at cost ol acquisition less accumulated amount amortizec and net of impeirment
ifany. Computer Software is amortized over a period of 60 months.

LEASES

In respect of assets acquired on or after |* April, 2001, the same are capitalized at the lower of the fair vatue and present value of
the minimuim lease payments st the inccptioq of the lease term. Lease payments are apportioncd between the interest charges and
reduction of the leased liabillfy so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balenee of the liability. Interest
component 's charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss

Operating Lease payments are recognized as expeaditure in the Statement of Profit and Loss an siraight line basis, oves the lease
period,

DEPRECIATION / AMORTISATION

Depreciation on Fixed Assets otker than hotel building and leased vehicle is provided on Straight Line basis over the vseful life of
the various ¢lass of assers prescribed under Schedule ]! of the Companies Act, 2013.

In the case of noel building the carrying amount after setling aside residval value is equally amortised over the residual Jife of the
building asceraired by technical assessment. "

Vehieles acquired on lease are depreciated over the respeetive lease peried. Compuler soflware are beirg amortized over a period
of 60 menths.



MASHOBRA RESORT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNT {Contd.)

INVENTORIES

Inventories are vajyued a. cost which is based on First-in-First-out method or net realizable value, whichever s lower.
Unserviceable/s damaged/discarded stocks and shortages are charged (o the Statement oI Profit and Loss

TRANSACTIONS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

a)  Transactions jn foreign currencies are recocded af the exchange rate Prevailing on the date of transaction,
b) Monetary ilems outstanding at the Batance Sheet date are translated at the exchange rale Prevailing at the Balance Sheer
date ana the difference is recognized as income or expenses,

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short Term Employee Beneft is provided for in statement of Profi; & Loss of the year in which related service is rendered +o the
company.

Post Employmeal and other Long Tenn Employee Benefits are provided for in the Accounts in the following manner:

) Gratuity - Maintained as a defined benefit retirement plan and contribution ts made to the Life Insurance Corporation of
India, as per the Company’s Scheme in respecy of executives, For other employees, pravision/ write back, if any, is made
on the basis of the present value of the liability as at the Balance Sheet date determined by actuaria) valuation following
Projected Unit Method ang is treated ag ligbility,

(i) Leave Encashment on retirement / separation/ termination - As per independent aciugria’ valuation as at the Balance Sheet
date following projected Unit Credit Method in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard AS-15 (Revised:
on Emgioyee Benefity 18 included in provisions.

{iil) Providenr Fung — Liability on account of Provident Fund is a Defined Contribution Scheme where the contribution is made
t0 a fund administerey vy the Governmen Prevident IFund Authority.

BORROWING cosr

Borrowing cosis that are aliributable to the acquisition/construction of fixed assets are eapitalized as part of the ost of (he
respective assets. Olhgr borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the year in which they arise.

TAXES ON INCOME

Litcome-tax 15 accounted for after taking into consideratior benefits admissible Lnder the provisions of the ;ncome Tax Act. 1961,
and in aecordanee with Accounting Standard (AS-22) - "Accounting for Taxes an Income’.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT; s accounted for in accordance with 1ax laws which 8IVes rise 1o future econpm)c benefits in the
form of tax credit against which future incore tax liabiiity is adjusted and js recognized as an asset in the Balance Sheet,

Deferred ax is proyided and recognized on timing differences between taxable jncome and aceounting income subject to
prudential consideration,

Deferred 1ax assery on unabsorbed depree;atjor, and carry forward lesses are not recognized unless there is virtual certainty about
availabiiity of fulyre taxable income 1o realize such assets.

PROPOSED DIVIDEND .
Dividend, when recommended by the Board oFDirecrors, is provided for in the Accounts pending Shareho'ders’ approval
PROVISION, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

Provisions are recognized in terms oFAccounting Standard (A8-29) - ‘Provisiors. Contingent Liabilities and Cont:ngen: Assets’
when there is a present .egal or Statutory obligation as a result of past evenys, where it is probable that there will ne outflow of
resources to seitle the ob;igation and when a reliable egtimare of the amount of the obligation can be mace.

Contingent Labilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligat,on aris:ng from past events due 1o oeecrrenge of nor-
eecurrenee of one or more uncertain fulure even's no; wholiy within the eontrol of the Company or where any present opligation

cannol be measured in terms of futere outfow of resourees or where g reliabie esiimate of the odligation cannot be made
Obligations are assessed on an ONgoing basis anc on ly those having a iargeiy probadle outflow ofresources are provided for.



MASHOBRA RESORT LIMITED

Notes to the Accounts - contd.

As at 31st March

2018 2014
Rupees Rupees Rupces
2
SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED
50,000,000 (2014 - $0,000,000) Equity Shares of 7 10 cach 500,000,000 500,000,000
—_— ————
500,000,000 500,000,000
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED, CALLED & PAID UP
33,000,000 (2014 - 33,000,000} Equrty Shares of % 10 each fully paid up 330,000,000 339,000,000
330,000,000 330,000,030
LIV
(&) Reconciliation of Equity Share Capital

Balance at the begirning of the year
Add/Less: Movement during the year
Balance al the end of the ycar

(b) Raghts, preferences ang resifictions atached ta the sheras

' As at 31st March 2015 [

Asal 3lst March 2014

. No, of Amouaut . No.of Amount

. sharey ) _ | shares

| 31,000,000 330,009,000 | 33,000,000 126,000,006

‘ . - . . o
3,000,000 330000000 | 33,000000 330000000

The Company has one class of equity shuses baving face vaiue of T 10 per share with equal voling rights

(¢} Equity Sharcs held by the Holding Company

25,999,995 (2014 - 25,999,995) Equity shares are held by the holding

(d) Details of cquity shares held by sharcholders hetding more than

FIE Limied

Governmen| of Himacha! Pradesh

(¢) 6,999,997 Equity Shares were ellotied as fuily paid up pursuant

)

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Surplus i the Statement of Profit and Loss

Balunce at the beginning of the year
is nil
Lax

Less: Carrying amount of fMixed assels where remaining useful life
85 on 01.04.2014 (Seh-i] of Companics Act, 2013) net of Deferred

Add : Profit for the year
Less: Appropriations

Froposed Dividend on Equity Shares

Dividend Distribution Tax on proposed dividend on Equity Shares
Balance ut the end of the yesr

Company, EIH Limitec.

5% of the aggregatc shares in the Company : -

As al 31st March 2014 .
Number of
Shares

As al 315t March 20158

| Numberof C
| Shares Holding %
f

Holding %

25,999,995 78.79% 25,959,995 78.79%
)

21.21%
100.00%

7,000,001 2L.21%:

32,999,995 102.00%

7,000,000

{08 contract without payment being received in cesh on 22nd March, 1997

(617,630,642) (642,427,854}
{16,687,483)
101,747,358 5,823,057
- 23,100,000

- 3925845
(832,570,770

(67,630,642)
—— YL



MASHOBRA RESORT LIMITED

Notes to the Accounls - contd.

LONG TERM BORROWINGS
(i) SECURED (Nole & betow)
Long term maturities of finance Jease obligation

(1) UNSECURED (Note b below)
Governmen! of Himaeha' Pradesn

Particutars of securlty and terms of repayment for borrowing

Rupces

As at
2618
Rupees

1,058,582

5,000,000

6,058,582

Name of the Lender

st March
2014
Rupecs

903,261

5,000,000

3.903,261

i
Nature of Seeurity '

i(s) Finance fease obl{gations

|

—

Terms of Repayment/ :
Rate of Interest i

iFinance Leusc  Oblipations arel Equated Monthly lease rertals!

|
Isecured

by

nypotheeation
|Vehicles vnderlying the leasca,
{

offover

{lcases.

the respeetive period oﬂl

(b) Government of Himachal Pragesh

i’Unsccumd

|

]
Repayable at the option af :he]
Company, )
Rate of Interest: 16.50% p a

OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

(1) Trade Payablcs
Towl Quistenting Dues of Miers Enterprisos & Smal) Emterprises
Towl Duistancing Dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises &
Small Enteprises

(i} Other Payables
Liability for Capital Expendilure

LONG TERM PROVISIONS
Pravision for Employce Benefits
(1} Leave Lincashment
{i) Grality

1438,920
34),72;

o L780,G4)

8820

8,820

1,018815
399,904
1,328,715



MASHOBRA RESORT LIMITED

Noles {0 the Accouns - contd,

TRADE FAYABLES

(i) Tow, Cutstanding Dues of Micro Entorpdises & Smal] Enterprises
(i1) Tota) Cutsianging Dues of Creditors other then Micro Entarprises &

Small Enterprises

There &r¢ no Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises as defined ir the M

1he company owes dues.

OTHER CURRENT LIABI LITES

(i} Curent matusities of Fingace Lease Qbligauons (Refer Note 4a sbove)

(i)} Advance from cusiomers
{iii) Liability for Capilal Expenditure
(iv) Othe~ Payables

Relontion money

Statutory Liabiditics

Other Lisbitities

SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

A Provision for Employee Benetits

(i; Leave Encashmen)

(') Gratuily

B Other Provisions

1) Proviswn for Income Tax
(i) Provision for Proposed Dividend on Equily Shares
(iii) Provision for Tax an Dividend

Rupees

icro, Smal) and

As 8t 31st Murch

2018
Rupees

17,628,861

17,628,861

20104
Rupecs

14,544,397

14,544,397

Mecivm Enterprises Develapmenrt Act, 2006 1o whom

686,480
3,099,919
1,509,614

5,616,148
3,525,398
2,970,804

17,408,363
—TI0d

144,233
3,738

36,226,319

36,374,290

42..653
3,830,530

4,487,432
3278324
3,044,754

16,062,693
———0E0 7S

194,997
3848

6,353,000
23,100,000
3,925,845

— 3925845
33,577,650






MASHOBRA RESORT LIMITED

Notes o the Accounts - contd.

As at 3Ist March

2018 20.4
Rupees Rupecs Rupees
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)
Deferred Tax Assels on secount of:
Unabsorbed Depreciation 171,205,544 173,655,320
Unabsorbed Business Loss 31,062,498 68,375,736
Accrued expenses ceduetible on payment 467,303 .
Provision for Grawity and 1.eave Encashment 667,454 495,518
— —
203,402,799 242,536,724
Deferreg Tax Liabilities on account of ;
Depreciation 100,516,506 108,284,303
—_— —_—
___ 106,516,506 308,284&
Deferred Tax Asscis (Net) 102,886,293 134,252,421
—eT ———apeRL

Based on the lost couple of years conlinued irmproved performance, coupled with infusion of tapita) as “Advanee towards Shares”, consequent
reduction Ir interest outgo and the current trends in Trovel & Tourjsm Industry per se, the Company is of the opinion that there is vinual
certainity of susiainable Profitablity from the susiness in fuiure years. Accordingly, the Company cxpects that sufficient futyre taxable income
wi'l be availadle against which deforred 1ax assels op account of Srought forward business losses and enabserbed depresiation amounting to T
31.062,498 (2014 -¥ 68,375,786) & ¥ 171,205,544 (2014 - 2 173,665,320) sespectively, will be realised in Nulure

12
LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Unseeurced, considered good (unless otherwise stated)
(i) Seenrity Deposits 838,975 797,549
{1} Prepaid Expenses . 147,994 205,876
986,466 1,003,425
—_— e
13
INVENTORIES
(i} Provisions, Stores, Wines & Smokes 3,470,102 4,437 .59,
i} Other traded goods 1,206,842 1,376,576
tiii) Crockery, Cuilery, Chinaware, Glasswase, Linen et 5,829,108 4,813,373
(iv) Olher 31ores 3,856,516 4,384,210
— ————
14,362,565 15,011,750
— 04003 — Y DY
irventories are valied at cost which is based on Firsi-in-First-out memod or net reahbsable value, whichover .5 lower,
Jrsevicpeblesdamaged/discarded siocks and shortapes are charged 10 the Statermeat of Profi ang Luss
iq

(i) Outstanding for a period of exeseding six months from the dve date .
(ii} Others 16,919,216 9,786,486

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Unsecured, considercd good)

_— ——
16,919,216 9,786,486
———l 10 —— e



MASHOBRA RESORT LIMITED

Notes to the Accounts - contd.

15

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
A Casa & Cash Equivalznils

(1; Cashon hand
(i} Thegques on hand
(i) Benk Balances

i current nacoynts
In fixed deposits with fess than 3 menths maturity

B Other Hank Balances

(i) Balance 1n Fixed deposit accounts having more than 3 months but less
than 12 months macunily

{{1) In Bank account as per High court order dated 17¢h December, 2003

(Refer note 25 (c))

Un current acequnts

in fixed deposits

16

SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Unsccured, considered good (unless olherwise states)
{1} Advance recaverable in eash or in kind or for value 10 be reecived
- [rom Related Paties

- from Others
(i1) Propaid Expenses

(i5) Advance Tax including TDS
&v) MAT Credit Entitlement (Note - 25(g)}

(v) Sundry Deposilts

7

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Unsceured, considered good (unless otherwise stated)

(i) Oiher Receivables
('} Interest acgrucd

Rupees

403,409
671,745

300,225

4,408,689

109,751,085

18,560

386,257,187

36,435912

35,597,846

75,811,781

2015
Rupees

5,784,068

496,026,832

501,810,900

699,399
2,132,796

72,033,758
945,828

166,462
2,589,645
2,756,107

As at 3st March

2044
Rupees

572,329
656,14)

645,552
21,748,024
23,622,046

59.681,166

19,478
310,484,535
370,185,479
393,807,225

/

1,102,636
2,577,865
7,908,744
5,572,000
1,480,744
979,328
18,141,073

171,285
404,80
576,146




MASHODRA RESORT LIMITED
Notes to the Accounts - contd,

18

19

20

22

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

income from Guest Aecommodation, Restaurants, Bars & Banquets, z1c.
Rooms
Food & Beverages
Other Services

OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Oters

OTHER INCOME
Interest from banks
Interest from others

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Provisions, Smokes & Wines

Ogening Stock

Ad¢ : Purchases

Less : Closing Stock
Consumption (s)

Other traded goods
Opening Stoek
Add . Purchases

Less - Closing Stock
Consumption (b
Toial (a+h)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries, Wages & Bonus

Company's eontribution towards Provident Fund
Provision for Grawity (Refer note 22 (a))

Provision for Leave Encashment (Refer note 22 (b))
Workmen and staff wel fare expenses

Year ended 31st March

2015 2014
Rupees Rupees
214,105,962 173,398,867

93,575,955 90,101,451

31,095,108 28,513,063
338,777,025 292,013,381

1,097,758 911,523
1,097,758 911,521
40,375,039 28,797,905
186,288 -
40,361,327 28,767,905
4,437,591 2,785,671
17,824,438 18,996,218
22,262,029 21,781,839
3,470,102 4,437,59.
18,791,927 17,344,298
1,376,576 1,401,403
2,764,156 2,899,624
4,140,732 4,301,027
1,206,842 1,376,576
2,933,890 2,924,45;

21725817

45,717,249
1,984,920
165,149
1,070,059
8,300,045
57,237,422

20,268,749

41,369,645
1,524,336
61,430
620,718
6,619,821

50,195,950,




MASHOBRA RESORT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNT (Contd.}

22 (a)

Long Term Defined Benefit Plans in respeet of Grawity and Compensated Abscnees on 31* March, 2015 as per
Aetuarial Valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method and reeognized in the Finaneial Statements in respect of
Employee Benefit Schemes:

i Yearended | Year ended

f

1 Gratuity 31st March 31st March

j C 2018 2014

'} () Components of Employer Expense |

§ (a) Current Serviee Cost " 195,898 L1178

5 (6) Interest Cost 22,233 21,688

i (c) Expected Retumn on Plan Assets

i (d)  Cunailment Cost / (Credit) . |

! (&) Settlement Cost / (Credit) . i :

; (6 Past Service Cost :

| (g) Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses 37018 (71,433)
(h) Liability no longer required
(iy Total expense / (gain) reeognized in the Statement of Profit 165,149 61.430

& Loss

_ (M Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in Balance Sheet

? (&) Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligetions 345,459 313,752

; (8) TFair Value of Plan Assets . .|

| (¢) Funded Status |Surplus/(Deficit): (345,459} (13752

f (%) Unrecognisec Past Service Cost - !

‘ (e__) Net Asset / (Liability) recognised in Balance Sheet (345,459} (313,752) j

. () Change in Defined Benefit Oblipations (DBO) during the year ;
ended on 31st March 2015

! {a) Present value of DBO at beginning of period | 313,752 273,437

' (b) Current service cost i 105,898 N117s
(c) Interest cost I 22,233 21,688
(d) Curtailment cost/(Credit) .
(e) Settlement cosl/(Credil) :
{f)  Plan Amendments !
(g) Aequisitions i o
(h) Actuarial {gains)/losses l; 37,018 (71.433) :
(i) Benefits paid ‘ {133,442) @Lsy
(i) Liability no longer required | '
(k) Preseni value of DBO &t the end of period : 345,459 313,752

" (1v)  Change in Fair Value of Assels during the year ended 315t ‘
March 2015
{a) Plar Assets as at beginring of the perjod

; (b)  Acquisition Adiusiment

i (c)  Actuarial Return on Plan Assets
(d) Actuarial Gains/ (Losses) i .
(&)  Actual Company Contribution 133,442 1018 ‘
(ff  Benefits Paid ; (133,442 | @115y |

j {g) Plan Assets at the end of period . '

(V) Investment Details

Invesied with LIC in Greup Grawity Scheme




MASHOBRA RESORT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCQUNT (Contd.)

(Vi)  Actuarial Assumptions

(a)
b)
l (¢)
(d)

o

()]
(¢)
@

()

(a)
|

- S —— _ —
\
Discount rate (%) 8.00% [ 9.00%
Expeeted rate of return {
Salary Esca.ation (%) 550 ] 350%
Mortality Indian assured lives Indian assured [ives
mortality (2006-08) | mortality 2006-C8) |

' (moditied) Ultimate | {modified) Ultimate |

Net Asset / {Liability) recognized in Baance | Year ended | Vear ended | Yearended | Yearended Year ended |

Sheet {including experience adjustment JistMeren ¢ 3tstMarch | 3istMarch | 31st March | 31si March |

2008 2004 2003, 2012 | 2011

Present Value of Defined Benefit i an I w
Obligalion 345,459 ‘ 313,752 | 273,437 164,080 598,976
Fair Vajuve of Plan Assets ) } ) i N ) |
Funded Statys {Surplus/(Deficit)] (345,459) 1 (313.752) (273,437) (164,080) (598,976)
Experience Adjustments on Plap < .
Liabilities loss/(ggins) (35,331) (16,595) 25,758 (32,542) 5 113,701 f
Experience adjustments on plan assels ! l [
gain/(loss) - - - . |
Experience  (gain)/loss on  plan | ‘. ! { \
liabilities duc to  change 0") 72,349 0 (54,838) ' 28,513 (14,968) 1 (12,8 :)J

_assumptions
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MASHOBRA RESORT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNT (Contd.)

"(VI)  Actuarial Assumptions 1 :
(a) Discount rate (%) 8.00% 9.00%
: (b)  Expected rate of return - - §
: (c)  Salary Escalation (%) $.50% 5.50%
(¢)  Mortality [ Indian assured lives Indian assured lives
' mortality (2006-08) mortaiity (2006-08)
! . (modified) Uhimate ‘ (modified) Ultimate
+ (VII}  Net Asset / (Liadility) recognized in | Year ended | Year ended  Year ended - Year ended | Year ended |
Balance Sheet (including experienee 3ist March | 3ist Mareh | 31st Mareh | 31st March @ 31st Mareh
adjustment impaet) 2015 2004 12013 & 2012 | 200
i . [
Present Value of Defined Benefit . .
| (@) Obligation i 1,445,306 1,025,483 849,849 766,985 661,780 ’
; (b)  Fair Value of Plan Assels i ! -
(¢)  Funded Status [Surplus/(Deficit)] (1,445,306) | (1,625,483) ; (849,849) {766,985) (661,780)
Experiencc  Adjusiments on  Plan ; = 5 4
{(d) Liabilities joss/(gains) 656,681 623,322 |J 594,738 349,566 454,947
(&) Experienee adjustments on plan { 1 i
assets galn/(loss) - ( i )
Experience (gain)/loss on plan |
(f)  liabilities due 1o change of 247,710 (156,243) 82,102 (67,786) (14,349)
L assumptions ;




MASHOBRA RESORT LIMITED
Notes Lo the Accounts - contd.

23

2

FINANCE COS7TS
inerest Expense

{Inciuding lnterest on Income Tax w's 234B & 243C TNil; 2014 . ¥

256,319)

OTHER EXPENSES
Linen, Uniform Washing & Laundry Expenses
Expenses on Apartment & Doard
Power & lfuel
Renewals & Replacernents
Repsir & Maintenance - Building
- Plant & Machinery
- Others

Expenses for contractual services
Rent
Advertisement, Publicity & Other Promotional Expenses
Printing & Staticnery
Insurance
Passage & Travelling
Postage, Telephone & Telex
Subseriptions
Water Charges
Commission to Travel Agents and others
Auditors Remuneration

- Audit fees

- For taxation matters
legal & Professional
Donation
Rates & Taxes
Musicel, Banquet & Kitchen Expenses
Corporate Social Responsibilty
Other expenses

Year coded 31st March

2018 2014
Rupecs Rupeces

1,157,445 1,405,946
1,157,448 1,405,946
671,273 629,345
10,691,577 9.433,147
32,730,699 36,190,041
5,614,583 4,180,420
5,627,674 5,289,206
5,360,230 5,149,101
5,355,563 4,188,315
0,255,787 7,263,255
1,173,199 1,133,718
3,229,757 3,278,106
1,129,641 1,015,346
961,503 846,230
5,560,035 4,544,:53
1,475,519 1,073,094
896,039 453,605
8,275,271 9,339,677
11,578,707 9,695,066
21,000 21,000
15,000 15,000
4,321,144 18,504,892
18,500 17,000
2,173,036 2,202,854
1,758,118 1,838,882

1,133,832 -
2,401,668 2,200,934

121,428,355

128,502,448




MASHOBRA RESORT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNT (Contd.)

b)

&)

)

i) Advances received from EIH Limitec, 1he holding  company, amounting to ¥ 1,361,925 454
(2014 - & 1,361,925,454) have been shown as “Advance towards Shares” as the company inlends e issue sHaras
aganst the said advances withou: allotment, pending settlement of inter se legal issLes between Government of
Himachai Pragesh and EIM Limited in relation to the Company and the stay orders issued by the Honb’ic High
Court of Himachal Pradesh at Shimla in this regard. In view of the above, the same has not been disclosed as Non-
Current Liability but as a separate line item below Shareholders’ Fund in the Balance Shest.

i) The paid up share capital of the Company has been eroded by its accurulated losses of the past period. However,
keeping in view the improved business outlook, sustained profitability over the las! couple of years and infusion of
funds as “Advance towards Shares”, the aeeounts of the Company have been continued 1o be prepared on the basis
of going coneern. :

Contingern Liabilities and Commitmenis:
1 Centingent Liabilities - Clajms agains: the company not acknowledged as debts - 2 5,163,974 (2014 - 25,263,974
i respect of a service tax case which is pending before Customs, Excise & Serviee Tax Appellatz Tribuna..
i) Capital Commitments - The estimated amount of contracts remaining 1o be executed on Capital account and not
provided for ¥ Nil (2014 TN,

In case of the hotel building of the company, due to superior struetural condition, management decided to get the residual
life assessed by technical expert. Based on the eertifieation of the technjcal expert the carrying amount of the hote; building
after setting asice residual valye is being depreeiated over residual life of GO years.

Leases
i} Motor Vehicles aeguired on Finance lease amounting to Z 3,040,000 (2014 . % 2,090,000}, being the assets acquired
between st April, 2003 1o 315t March, 2015. This includes an amount ol ¥ 950,000 (2014 - 7 NIL) being the assets
acquired during the year under finance lease and capitalized in line with the requirements of Aeeounting Standard
(AS-19) on “Accounting for Leases”, Depreeiation for the year ineludes an amourt of ¥ 553,342 (2014 - ¥ 558,199)
being depreciation charged on the assets.

The Yesr wise break up of outstanding lease obligations as on 31,03.2015 in respect of these Assets capilalized
during the year are as under :-

| Vehicle taken on Lease o i . . _ Rupees
_Totel minimun Lease payments asal 31.03.13 o 2,261,857

L N _ (1,858,602)
i,P‘[esem value of minimum Lease payments as at 31.03.] 5 - 1,745,062

3 N_ - (1,324,914)

jNot Later than one year |

Minimum Lease payments 969,948 |

[ (660,492) |
Present Value as on 31.03.15 686,480

‘ . (421,653) |

Later than one year but not later than S years |

Minimum lease payments 1,291,809

(1,198,110)

Present Value as on 31.03.15 o ~ 1,058,582
_ 326D

_Later than 5 Year !

Minimum Lease payments Nil |

- Present Value as on 31.03.15 o Nil|

(Figures in braekets ~epresents figure for year ended 3. " Maren, 201 4)



MASHOBRA RESORT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNT (Contd.)

{i) Disciosurcs in respect of Company's Operating lease arrangements emiered on or afler 1st April 2001 under
Accounting Standard (AS~19) on leases:

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements primarily for hiring office equipments and residential
premises for its employces which are cancellabic in nature. It may genecally be terminated by either party by serving
a notice. The lease agreements are gencrally renewabie by mulual consen: on mutually agreeeble terms. The
company has incurred ¥ 1,450,139 during the year (2014- % 1,377,490 ) towards expenditure on operating lease
arrangements

¢)  The Company was incorporated consequent upon & Joint Venture Agreement between EIH Limited and the Government of
Himachal Pradesh. Dispules inter se between the two Joint Venture Partners as well as between ke Company and the
Government of Himachal Pradesh were referred by the High Court of Himachal Pradesh by an Order dsted 17th Deeember,
2003 1o an Arbitral Tribunal consisting of a single Arbitrator.

The Arbitrator's Award daied 23rd July, 2005 has heen chalienged, both by the Company and EIH Limited, amongst others,
before the High Court of Himachal Pradesh. The operation of the Award stands stayed pencing substzntive hearing and
disposal of the Application by the High Court. As a resuli, the status of ihe matter stood restored (o the same position as it
was on 17th December 2003, when the disputes were referred by the High Court to arbitration. The Company's notel unit,
Wildflower Hall, continues to be operated accerdingly.

In view of the foregoing, the etfect of the Award has not been recognised in these accounts. However, pending the final
outcome of the above proeeedings, the Company continues to keep 30% of the Room Revenue in respect of the balance 57
Rooms , being operated as per the directions of the High Court, deposited with a Nationalised Bank, In accordanee with the
17th Deeember, 2003 Order above referred to.

Appropriate intimation of sueh deposit has been given to the Himaehal Pradesh Government. This deposit has been disclosed
‘n these aceounts under "Cash and Banx Balances” {Refer note 15(8) (ii).

) The detaiis of ransactions enlered into with Related Partjes during the year are as follows:
A. Name of tne Related Parties
{I) Holding Company — EIH Limited

{11) Fellow Subsidiary Companies
[. Mumtaz Hoteis Limited
2. EIM International Limited
3. Oberoi Kerala Hotels and Resoris |imited
4. EIH Flight Services Limited, Mawitius

() Enterprises in which Key Management Personnel have s.gnificant influence
Oberoi Hotels Private Limited

Qberai Properties Private Limited

Oberci Holdings Private Limited

Oberoi Investments Private Limited

Oberoi Buildings and Investments Private Limited
Oberoi Plaza Private Limited

Bombay Plaza Private Limited

Oberoi Leasing & Finanee Company Private Limited
Araval) Polymers LLP

Oberci [nternational LLP

Go.den Jubiiee Hotels Limited

S0P NO s a N —

- @

(IV) Key Management Personne!
\. Mr. Arjun Oberoi



MASHOBRA RESORT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNT (Contd.)

B. Transactions. with Related Parties Quring the financia: year and outslanding balances as on 31.03.20] 5

) —[ Holding Fellow Enterprises in which © Key Management |
| Company | Subsidiary Key Management | Personnel :
i Companies Personnel have ‘ i

i
i | significant influence

(Rupees) ! (Rupees) ~ (Rupegs) (Rupces) B

Purchases ; L
. ' 33,652,945 73,710 37,0551 Nil
Goods & Services (6,529,123) (353,384) ’ (239,594) | Nil)
N Nil ] Ni| Nil Nil
Fixed Assets il (il ' il Nil)
Expenses :
N Nil Nil ! Nil Nil
Rem & Service Charges NHT) O\l (NIl ONiD)
© Sales ! {
. o I 7,558,943 51,118 25,615 NI
| Goods & Services (922,354)  (217,804) (279,468) | i
. Nil Nil Nil N
i Fixed Assets o ) . ) N
L [ (Nil) | (Nil) | (Nil) ONib
Elnance | R ]
| Advance against equity shares Nil Nil Nil Nil!
| application received (net) , o o o
; Qi) (il i) | 1)
* Loan Received Nil | Ni"1 Nl Nil
| ONiD Quib) (i (NI |
. Repayment of Loan Nil ] Nil | Nil Nl
(Nil) ’ NI NI (Nl
Imteres: Paid/Provided (ne() ' Nil'; Nil Nif Nil
| .
: NIl | b § Qi) Nl
Qutstanding balances T 7 )
Payables g
i For Goods & Services 262,374 13,167 Nil Nil ]
‘ i (291,523) - (Nil) _(18,596) (Nil)
" Receivables 1 ! ,
For Goods & Services ] 190,742 | Ni! Nil Nil |
| (76,759 | (4,400) @295 o
__ Others | | :
1 Loans  Payable (including i N|]_' Nil Nil i
l interest acerued & due) Nil) ! (Nil) Nib ! M
Advance towards Equity Sheres ) 1,361,925,454 | Nil Nil Nil,
(1,361,925,454) | (NIl Ni ! (Nii) !

(Figures In brackets represent figures for year ended 31* March, 2014)

g) The Company has calculated iis tax liabiiity after considering Minimum Aitemative Tax (MAT). MAT credit entitlement has

been shown urder She:t Term Loans and Advances ¥ 35,597,846 (2014~ ¥ 5,572,000)




MASHOBRA RESORT LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNT (Contd.)

h) Expendilure ir. Foreign Curreneies:

Year ended 3. st March

; [ 2015 , 2004 |
‘ 7 ‘ [ Rupees Rupees |
| Expenditure on CommiVssion, Reservation fee eic ‘_ 3,574,382 'L l,4§_4,355 ;
1) Earnings in Forelgn Currencies on Salas:
| Year ended 3ist Mareh
i 2015 C 204 |
“ 3 Rupees Rupees :
| Earaings in Foreign Currencies on Sales 62,881,802 48,282,429 |
R [ .
j) CIF Value of Imports:
a. Value of Imports ealeulated on C.LF. basis in respect of:
T T " Yearoended 3isiMarsh |
i To201s 20014
o o s Rupees Rupees |
Capital Goods 2,127,694 1,204,129
Components & Spares i 1,777,801 952,237 |
- Provisions, Smokes & Wines 1,678,753 2,490,420 |
b.Toral va:ue of Consumption of Provisiens, Smokes & Wines:
s Year ended 31% March )
L 2015 2014
i Rupees | Percenlage Rupees l Percentage
 Imported TTT2,235,107 | 11.89% 1,899,502 10.95% -
Indigenous 16,556,820 | 88.11% 15,444,796 | 89.05%
| Total T (8791927  10000% 17,344,298 , 100.00% ,

k) Foreign currency exposure not hedged by any derivative instrumgnt of otherwise:

TAsal3lstMarch 2014 |

3 T Asat3[s March 2015

. Currency Receivable | Payable Receivable
{  Rupees i‘ Rupees { Rupees
US Dollar . 244,943 | .
GBP \' : 323,958

') Segment Reporting:

o

Payable i
Rupees '
427,649 |

{

—

There is no reportable segment ather than hotel as per Accounting Standard {AS-17) or. Segment Reporting.



MASHOBRA RESORT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNT (Contd.)

m) Earnings per Equity Share

Computation of both Rasic and Diluted Earnings per share of 2 10/-

Year ended 315t March i

2015 ’ 2014
Rupees ) Rupees
Profit/ (Loss) as per the Statement of Profit and Loss 101,747,355 { 31,823,057
! Number of Equity Shares 33,000,000 33,000,000
LBasic and Diluted Earnings per Equity Share ) ‘ 3.08 1.57

n) Proposed Dividend

0)

p

i

; | Yearended3lstMarch |
? 2015 2014
Rupces Rupees

On Equity Shares of € 10 each
Amount of dividend proposed - 23,100,000 ;
Dividend per Equity Share (%) e - 0.70 per share |

Againsl the required expenditure of ¥ 1,453,000/~ for CSR sctivities pursuant to section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 read
with Sechdule VII and Companies (Corporate Socaial Responsbility) Rules 2014, being 2% of the average net profit of the
company made during the three immediately preceding financial year, an amount of ¥ 1,133,832/~ has beer incurrcd by the
company during the year. Out of this 2 1,119,188/ has been spent for promoting education, setting up homes & hostels for
differcritly abled children at Dhalli in the district of Shimla, tfimachal Pradesh and T 14,644/- has been spent on Swatch
Bharat Abhiyaan.

As mentioned in the earliar accounts also, the Accounts of the company were not approved by the Nominee Directors of the
Himachal Pradesh Government - the Joint Venure Partner. As such the Aceounts were approved by the Audit Committee and
the Board of Directors by majority.

The previous year’s figures have been regrouped, rearranged and reelassified wherever necessary. Amounts and other

diselosures for the preceding year are ineluded as an integral part ofthe currentyedr Financial Slatem;n&y;s?d are 10 be read in
relation to the accounts and other diselosures relating to the CLprept year.

Chief Financlal Offieer Managing Director

Company Secretary bm;mo\r

Shimla
14" May, 2015



